EDG-4508+

8-Port RS-232/422/485 to Ethernet Data Gateway with Front Wiring

EDG-4508R+

8-Port RS-232/422/485 to Ethernet Data Gateway with Rear Wiring

EDG-4516+

16-Port RS-232/422/485 to Ethernet Data Gateway with Front Wiring

EDG-4516R+

16-Port RS-232/422/485 to Ethernet Data Gateway with Rear Wiring

User Manual

Copyright

This documentation and the software included with this product are copyrighted 2007 by Advantech Co., Ltd. All rights are reserved. Advantech Co., Ltd. reserves the right to make improvements in the products described in this manual at any time without notice. No part of this manual may be reproduced, copied, translated or transmitted in any form or by any means without the prior written permission of Advantech Co., Ltd. Information provided in this manual is intended to be accurate and reliable. However, Advantech Co., Ltd. assumes no responsibility for its use, nor for any infringements of the rights of third parties which may result from its use.

Acknowledgments

IBM and PC are trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation. MS-DOS and Windows are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation. Intel and Pentium are trademarks of Intel Corporation. All other product names or trademarks are properties of their respective owners.

CE Notification

The EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ developed by Advantech Co., Ltd. has passed the CE test for environmental specifications when operated within an industrial enclosure . Therefore, in order to protect the products from being damaged by ESD (Electric Static Discharge), we strongly recommend the use of CE-compliant industrial enclosure products when using any EDG module.

This manual covers the following models:

- EDG-4508+
- EDG-4516+
- EDG-4508R+
- EDG-4516R+

Part No. 20034508426th EditionPrinted in TaiwanJune 2007

Product Warranty (2 years)

Advantech warrants to you, the original purchaser, that each of its products will be free from defects in materials and workmanship for two years from the date of purchase.

This warranty does not apply to any products which have been repaired or altered by persons other than repair personnel authorized by Advantech, or which have been subject to misuse, abuse, accident or improper installation. Advantech assumes no liability under the terms of this warranty as a consequence of such events.

Because of Advantech's high quality-control standards and rigorous testing, most of our customers never need to use our repair service. If an Advantech product is defective, it will be repaired or replaced at no charge during the warranty period. For out-of-warranty repairs, you will be billed according to the cost of replacement materials, service time and freight. Please consult your dealer for more details.

If you think you have a defective product, follow these steps:

- 1. Collect all the information about the problem encountered. (For example, CPU speed, Advantech products used, other hardware and software used, etc.) Note anything abnormal and list any onscreen messages you get when the problem occurs.
- 2. Call your dealer and describe the problem. Please have your manual, product, and any helpful information readily available.
- 3. If your product is diagnosed as defective, obtain an RMA (return merchandize authorization) number from your dealer. This allows us to process your return more quickly.
- 4. Carefully pack the defective product, a fully-completed Repair and Replacement Order Card and a photocopy proof of purchase date (such as your sales receipt) in a shippable container. A product returned without proof of the purchase date is not eligible for warranty service.
- 5. Write the RMA number visibly on the outside of the package and ship it prepaid to your dealer.

FCC Class A

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class A digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference when the equipment is operated in a commercial environment. This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instruction manual, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. Operation of this equipment in a residential area is likely to cause harmful interference in which case the user will be required to correct the interference at his own expense.

Technical Support and Assistance

- Step 1. Visit the Advantech web site at **www.advantech.com/support** where you can find the latest information about the product.
- Step 2. Contact your distributor, sales representative, or Advantech's customer service center for technical support if you need additional assistance. Please have the following information ready before you call:

- Product name and serial number

- Description of your peripheral attachments

- Description of your software (operating system, version, application software, etc.)

- A complete description of the problem
- The exact wording of any error messages

Packing List

Before setting up the system, check that the items listed below are included and in good condition. If any item does not accord with the table, please contact your dealer immediately.

- EDG-4508+ or EDG-4516+ or EDG-4508R+ or EDG-4516R+ x 1
- CD-ROM for driver and utility x 1
- Rack mount kit, including 2 L-shape metal plates and 12 screws
- Power Cable x 1
- 30 cm Serial Connection Cable x 1
- Rubber Spacer x 4
- Terminal Connector x 1

Contents

Chapter	1	Overview	2
-	1.1	Introduction	2
	1.2	Features	3
	1.3	Specifications	4
	1.4	Packing Checklist	4
Chapter	2	Getting Started	6
	2.1	Understanding EDG-4508/4516(R)+ Modules	6
		2.1.1 Virtual COM Port Mode	7
		2.1.2 Data Mode	7
		2.1.3 Control Mode	7
	2.2	Panel Layout	8
	2.3	Connecting Hardware	9
		2.3.1 Rack Mounting	9
		2.3.2 Network Connection	9
		2.3.3 Power Supply Connection	10
		2.3.4 DI/O Connection	10
		2.3.5 Serial Port Connection	11
		2.3.6 Console Port Connection	11
	• •	2.3.7 Ordering Information	11
	2.4	Installation	12
		2.4.1 Configuration Utility	12
	•	2.4.2 COM Port Mapping Utility	16
Chapter	3	Configuration	20
	3.1	Searching EDG Modules	20
	3.2	EDG Modules Connected Devices Group	24
		3.2.1 Deleting Devices	26
	2.2	3.2.2 Connected Devices Group Functions	27
	5.5	Locking & Unlocking Devices	27
	3.4	3.4.1 Locate a specific device for you	31
		3.4.2 Grouping Locate specific devices for you	32
	35	Device System Configuration	22
	5.5	3.5.1 Security Configuration -Password Modify	35
	3.6	Port Configuration	36
		3.6.1 Virtual COM mode	41
		3.6.2 Data Mode	42
		3.6.3 Control Mode	45
	3.7	Monitor and Event Configuration	49
		3.7.1 Device Status	49
		3.7.2 Event setting	50
	3.8	UDP Testing Utility	51
	3.9	Updating EDG Firmware	55

Chapter	4	Port Mapping Utility	58
•	4.1	Overview	58
	4.2	Virtual COM Port Settings	
	4.3	Inquiring Virtual COM Port Setting	
		4.3.1 Self Test Function	
		4.3.2 Save the Configuration	65
Chapter	5	Web-Based Configuration	68
	5.1	Overview	
	5.2	Access Web Page	68
	5.3	Network Configuration	
	5.4	Port Configuration	
		5.4.1 Data Mode	
		5.4.2 Control Mode	
		5.4.3 Port UART setting	
	5.5	DI/O Event Configuration	
	5.0 5.7	Paset Configuration	
Cl 1	5.1		
Cnapter	0	Console Configuration	
	6.1	Overview	
	6.2	Hyper Terminal Connection	
	6.3	Command List	
Chapter	7	Event and DI/O Monitoring	
	7.1	Overview	
	7.2	Event and DI/O Monitoring	
		7.2.1 Polling Monitoring	
	7 0	7.2.2 Event Monitoring	
	7.3	Programming I/O	
Appendix	ĸΑ	Pin Assignments	100
	A.1	RS-232 Pin Assignments	100
	A.2	RJ-48 Cable PIN Assignments	
		A.2.1 1. RS-422	101
		A.2.2 2. RS-485	



Overview

Chapter 1 Overview

1.1 Introduction

This manual provides the necessary information to use EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+. The Advantech Ethernet Data Gateway series (EDG series) consists of fast and cost-effective data gateways between RS-232/422/485 and Ethernet interfaces.

EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ are part of the Ethernet Data Gateway (EDG) family of multiple port modules. They provide reliable and cost-effective network connections for serial devices, allowing users to extend their limited COM ports without changing the architecture of their existing application (s). EDG immediately upgrades users' existing device to the Internet world and make it possible for your software to access serial devices anywhere over a local LAN or the Internet.

To ensure the compatibility of network software that uses the standard network API(BSD sockets or Winsock), EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ also provideTCP/UDP control and TCP/UDP data mode. These units upgrade your existing device for integration into the Internet world and makes your serial devices behave just like networking devices.

EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ provide 8 and 16 serial ports respectively, that can be easily configured. To increase the reliability of systems, EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ provide various significant functions:

- · Auto-reconnection and Host Idle
- IP access control
- Support for Baud rates up to 230 kbps, meeting today's demand for high-speed data exchanges.

1.2 Features

- Supports 8/16 channels (8 Channels for EDG-4508(R)+, 16 Channels for EDG-4516(R)+).
- Supports RS-232/422/485
- Versatile socket operation modes, including TCP control mode, UDP control mode, TCP data mode, and UDP data mode.
- 4 DI/O for alarm handling
- Web-based configuration
- Auto-reconnection: automatic connection recovery to network
- LEDs for power status and all ports Tx/Rx monitoring
- Console mode configuration
- Supports front wiring access for EDG-4508+ and EDG-4516+, rear wiring access for EDG-4508R+ and EDG-4516R+
- · Easy-to-use Windows Utility for mass installation and remote control

1.3 Specifications

- I/O controller: 16C654 or compatible (auto hardware flow control)
- LAN Speed: 100Base-TX (10/100 Mbps)
- Ethernet Connection: RJ-45
- Serial: RS-232, RS-422 and RS-485
- Serial Connection: RJ-48
- DI/O: programmable 4DI,4DO for extra control
- Signals: TxD, RxD, RTS, CTS, DTR, DSR, DCD, RI, GND(RS-232) TxD+, TxD-, RxD+, RxD-, GND(RS-422) Data+, Data-, GND(RS-485)
- Baud rate: $50 \sim 230$ kbps
- Data bits: 5, 6, 7, 8
- Stop bits: 1, 1.5, 2
- Parity: none, even, odd, space, mark
- Max. Windows Virtual Port: 255
- Utility: EDG II Configuration Utility
- OS Driver support: Windows NT/2000/XP
- Power requirements: 90 V AC \sim 260 V AC, 47 \sim 63 Hz
- Power consumption: 22W(EDG-4516)
 18W(EDG-4508)
- Operating temperature: $0^{\circ} \sim 55^{\circ} \text{ C} (32^{\circ} \sim 131^{\circ} \text{ F})$
- Serial protection: 15,000 V ESD

1.4 Packing Checklist

- EDG-4508+ or EDG-4516+ or EDG-4508R+ or EDG-4516R+ x 1
- CD-ROM for driver and utility x 1
- Rack mount kit, include 2 L-shape metal plates and 12 screws
- Power Cable x 1
- 30cm Serial Connect Cable x 1
- Rubber Spacer x 4
- Terminal Connector x 1

EDG-4508(R)+/4516(R)+ User Manual 4



Getting Started

Chapter 2 Getting Started

This chapter includes information about installing EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ The following covered:

- Understanding the EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+
- Connecting Hardware
- Configuration Utility and COM port mapping Utility installation

2.1 Understanding EDG-4508/4516(R)+ Modules

EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ are advanced Ethernet data gateway units. They extend traditional COM ports of a PC to Ethernet access. Through Ethernet networking, users can control and monitor remote serial devices and equipment over LAN or WAN. Since EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ are connected with the TCP/IP protocol, you will have to know fundamental facts about Ethernet networking to get the server setup correctly. To allow for easier configuration, we provide several system configuration methods such as Configuration Utility, Web Configuration and Console mode Configuration. More details will be available in the following chapters.

EDG -4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ come with a virtual COM driver that transmits all signals intact. Your existing COM-based applications can be preserved, without in additional modification. EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ also provide various Socket modes: TCP/UDP control mode and TCP/UDP data mode. The main different of TCP and UDP protocol is that TCP guarantees delivery of data by requiring the recipient to send and acknowledge to the sender. UDP doesn't require this verification.

Traditional serial devices use RS-232/422/485 interface to issue commands or transmits data to another one. Many of these devices will be constrained by the length of wire. With the EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+, you are now able to communicate with each other via Internet. Even more, you can connect any networking device dynamically.

2.1.1 Virtual COM Port Mode

EDG series provide a virtual COM driver that works on Windows NT/ 2000/XP systems. This driver establishes a transparent connection between Host and serial devices. The driver will be installed on your computer automatically while you install COM port mapping utility. You have to use COM port mapping utility to configure the mapping between the EDG serial ports and local COM ports on the host computer.

2.1.2 Data Mode

In Data mode, EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ can establish the a TCP connection to a pre-defined host computer or device while serial data arrives. EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ will terminate the connection by the setting of Data Idle Timeout. This operation mode supports 4 simultaneous connections. The Data mode provides a certain amount of transparence and flexibility in transmitting data between devices. If you wan to transmit data to any networking device from serial device directly, data mode is a very perfect selection.

In data mode, the data from the serial port of one EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ can be automatically sent to the other networking device, without the need for an intermediate PC. Thus, serial devices will be no longer bundled with operation system and behave like network devices to send /receive data via Ethernet.

2.1.3 Control Mode

In controlling mode, the EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ presents a modem interface to the attached serial device: it accepts AT-style modem commands to connect / disconnect to other networking device. If you want serial device running application program to connect/disconnect to different devices by request, you can use controlling mode.

The controlling mode provides three modem AT-style commands. The serial devices can use these commands to control EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ to connect or disconnect to remote networking device. Thus, intelligent serial devices such as stand-alone PLC will send /receive data to/from devices one by one via Ethernet.

2.2 Panel Layout



Default Setting Button: press Default Setting button continuously and press the Reset button for to load factory defaults. This will cause the status LED to blink on and off. The factory defaults will be loaded while the LED stops blinking and buzzer buzzed. You can release the Default Setting button.

2.3 Connecting Hardware

This section introduces how to connect EDG-4508(R)+ or EDG-4516(R)+ to serial devices for first time.



2.3.1 Rack Mounting

2.3.2 Network Connection

Connect the Ethernet cable to EDG-4508(R)+ or EDG-4516(R)+Ethernet port. There are 2 LED indicator located on front panel to show the Ethernet status. If the cable is connected correctly, the LAN LED will indicate a valid connection to the Ethernet in the following ways:

LED	Status	Description
Speed	Green	100M bps
	Off	10M bps
Link/Active	Off	No Ethernet data being received or trans- mitted
	Blinking	Ethernet data being received/transmitted

Note Speed LED will keep the last status even though the Ethernet cable is disconnected. While EDG reboot or re-plug in the Ethernet cable, EDG will detect Ethernet LAN speed.

2.3.3 Power Supply Connection

Connect EDG-4508(R)+ or EDG-4516(R)+ AC power line with its AC connector. If the power is properly supplied, you can turn on the power switch and the Power LED will show a green color.



2.3.4 DI/O Connection



2.3.5 Serial Port Connection

Connect the serial data cable, OPT1A or OPT1D, between EDG series and the serial devices.

LED	Status	Description
Tx (Port N) N= 1~8/16	Blinking	Serial port data being transmitted
	Off	No data being transmitted
Rx (Port N) N= 1~8/16	Blinking	Serial port data being received
	Off	No data being received

2.3.6 Console Port Connection

Connect to Consol port using directly cable with DB9 connector. Refer to Chapter 6 for details.

2.3.7 Ordering Information

EDG-4508+

 $8\ensuremath{\text{-port RS-232/422/485}}$ to Ethernet Data Gateway with Front Wiring

EDG-4508R+

8-port RS-232/422/485 to Ethernet Data Gateway with Rear Wiring

EDG-4516+

16-port RS-232/422/485 to Ethernet Data Gateway with Front Wiring

EDG-4516R+

16-port RS-232/422/485 to Ethernet Data Gateway with Rear Wiring

Communication Cable RJ48 to DB9 30cm (OPT-1D)

30 cm RJ48 to DB9 M-Type RS-232/422/485 Cable

Communication Cable RJ48 to DB9 1m (OPT-1A)

1m RJ48 to DB9 M-Type RS-232/422/485 Cable

Terminal Connector (1654909900)

Terminal Connector for Test Usage

2.4.1 Configuration Utility

In order to use a PC and an Ethernet network to control serial devices connected to the EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+, you must first have a host running Windows NT/2000/XP. This type of application also requires the host to have an Ethernet card and the TCP/IP protocol installed. The following are the required steps for EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+.

1. Insert the Advantech industrial communication CD-ROM into the drive (e.g. D:\) on the host PC. Change the host computer's default drive from C: to D:

2. Use your Windows Explorer or the Windows Run command to execute the Setup program (the path for the Setup program on the CD-ROM if your default CD drive is D: should be):

 $\label{eq:linear} D:\Device Server(EDG)\Utility \& Driver\EDG \ COMPort \ Configuration \ Utility\V2.xx\98_NT_2000_XP \ v2.00 \ b014$

3. Upon executing the setup program, the Welcome Dialog Box will popup. Press the "Next" button to continue.



4. Carefully read the Software License Agreement, and press "Yes" to continue.

oftware Li	cense Agree	nent			×
2	Please read the the rest of the a	following Licens greement.	e Agreement. Pr	ess the PAGE DOWN	l key to see
ADVANT LICENSE YOU SHO Opening acceptar do not ag should re refund. R this progr or interna program t results ob	ECH AUTOMA AGREEMENT DULD CAREFU and using the e ce of the terms ree with the ter turn all software estocking fees am and license: tionally. You as o achieve your tained from this	TON CORPORA LLY READ THE rand conditions of ns and conditions , documentation , documentation , any apply. Advar , for its use in the sume the respons intended results, program.	TION FOLLOWING TE for any purpose i f this License Agr s of this license a and copy protecti tech Automation b United States, F sibility for the select and for the install	RMS AND CONDITIO ndicates your eement. If you greement you on keys for a Corporation provides uerto Rico, stion of the ation, use and	
Do you ac will close.	ccept all the terr To install Adva	ns of the precedir ntech EDG Utility	ng License Agree y, you must accep	ment? If you choose of this agreement.	No, Setup
			< <u>B</u> ack	Yes	No

5. The Setup program will specify a default installation path, C:\Program Files\Advantech\EDG COMPort Utility.

Choose Destination Loca	tion	×
	Setup will install Advantech EDG Utility in the following directory).
	To install to this directory, click Next.	
	To install to a different directory, click Browse and select anothe directory.	er
	You can choose not to install Advantech EDG Utility by clicking Cancel to exit Setup.	
S	Destination Directory C:\\EDG COMPort\EDGII Browse	
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>Next></u> Cancel	

6. In this step, you may select a specific program folder or just use the default setting and press "Next".

Select Program Folder



7. After setup has copied all program files to your computer, click the <Finish> button to finish the installation.



X

2.4.2 COM Port Mapping Utility

To setup and enable the Virtual COM on the HOST, you must install this utility on this PC. This driver is suitable for Window NT/2000/XP. This type of application also requires the host to have an Ethernet card and the TCP/IP protocol installed. The following are the required steps for installing EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+.

PC. Change the host computer's default drive from C: to D:

2. Use your Windows Explorer or the Windows Run command to execute the Setup program (the path for the Setup program on the CD-ROM should be D:\Device Server(EDG)\Utility&Driver\EDG COMPort Mapping Utility\2000_XP WDM v2.00 b206, if your default CD-ROM drive is D:).

3. Upon executing the setup program, the Welcome Dialog Box will popup. Press the "Next" button to continue.



4. Carefully read the Software License Agreement, and press "Yes" to continue.

oftware License A	greement			×
Please re the rest of	ad the following Licen of the agreement.	se Agreement. Pr	ess the PAGE DOWN I	key to see
ADVANTECH AU LICENSE AGREEI YOU SHOULD CA Opening and using acceptance of the do not agree with 1 should return all so refund. Restocking this program and lif or internationally. Y program to achieve results obtained fro	OMATION CORPOR/ MENT REFULLY READ THE I the enclosed software terms and conditions of the terms and conditions if the terms and conditions of the terms and conditions of the terms and conditions of the terms and conditions of the terms and the terms of the terms and terms of terms and terms of terms and terms of te	ATION FOLLOWING TE e for any purpose i of this License Agr ns of this license a and copy protect antech Automation re United States, F isibility for the sele- , and for the instal	RMS AND CONDITION indicates your reement. If you greement you ion keys for a Corporation provides Puerto Rico, ction of the lation, use and	451
LICENSE				_
Do you accept all t will close. To insta agreement.	he terms of the preced II EDG COMPort Mapp	ing License Agree ing Utility and Driv	ement? If you choose N er, you must accept this	o, Setup s

5. The Setup program will specifya default installation path, C:\Program Files\Advantech\COMPort Mapping Utility.

Setup will install EDG COMPort Mapping Utility and Driver in the following folder.
To install to this folder, click Next.
To install to a different folder, click Browse and select another folder.
You can choose not to install EDG COMPort Mapping Utility and Driver by clicking Cancel to exit Setup.
Destination Folder

6. In this step, you may select a specific program folder or just use the default setting and press "Next".



7. After setup has copied all program files to your computer, click the <Finish> button to finish the installation.

Setup Complete	
	Setup has finished copying files to your computer. Before you can use the program, you must restart Windows or your computer.
	Yes, I want to restart my computer now No, I will restart my computer later.
20	Remove any disks from their drives, and then click Finish to complete setup.
	K Back Finish



Configuration

Chapter 3 Configuration

3.1 Searching EDG Modules

EDG-4508(R)+/4516(R)+ provides an easy-to-use configuration utility to configure your Ethernet Data Gateway Device through an Ethernet connection. The utility provides a search function to show your device(s) by simply executing the configuration utility program from the Start Menu as follows.

Start Menu -> All Program -> Advantech eAutomation -> EDG COMPort



While you launch the EDG II configuration utility, the utility will load the setting.





You can click the search button to search all the EDG device(s) on the network and show them on the Available Devices Tab of the utility. You can click the "Close" button to stop the search. From here you can easily configure various parameters for TCP/IP configuration.

(In this example, the system finds the Ethernet Data Gateway device EDG-4516R+ in a local network)





You can click on the device name to show the features of the specific device. Click on the "+" before the model name (e.g. EDG-

4516(R)+), and the utility will expand the tree structure to show the individual device name. Click on the "-" before the model name (e.g. EDG-4516(R)+), and the utility will collapse the structure.

You may click the button, and the utility will expand all tree structure to show the individual device name. You might click button to collapse all tree structure.

For Example, EDG Configuration Utility shows "EDG-000102FFFF06" after expanding the tree structure.

- Note The EDG series default device name is "MAC ID". In this case, the device name "EDG-000102FFFF06" means the device "MAC ID" is "00 01 20 FF FF 06". You can change the default device name in System Tag of Device Properties.
- Note Please reserve TCP port 5202 in your network ,Configuration will use this port to communicate with EDG series.

3.2 EDG Modules Connected Devices Group

This EDG II configuration utility will allow you to add a device via specifies the IP address. You can click 'New' button to add a device. And then the EDG device will be shown on the 'Connected Devices' of the utility. From here you can easily configure various parameters.



Note The EDG II configuration utility only can search devices on the same IP domain. If you want to connect the devices on another domain, you might use this function and add the devices by yourself. You can select the device and click the "Append" button. The device will be moved to Connected Devices group.



You may click the "Group Append" button. The devices on the Devices Survey panel will be showed on the selected window. You might select the devices which you want to append to the "Connected Devices group", or click "Select All". Click "OK" button, the selected device will be moved to "Connected Devices group".

🔀 EDG Configuration Utility						- 🗆 🗙
Exit Eunction Help						
<u> </u>	Move D	evices				×
Ethernet Data Gateway						
<u> </u> 下 E Sear					Select All Clear All	
Available Devices :	No.	Model	Device Name	IP Address	MAC Address	
- 🔯 EDG -0001FF0304	□ 1	EDG 4516R+	EDG-000102030436	172.18.3.155	00:01:02:03:04:36	
E- EDG 4516R+	2	EDG 4508R+	EDG-0001FF030408	172.18.3.238	00:01:FF:03:04:08	
		-				
Connected Devices	L					
	-					
	-					
	-					
	<u> </u>					
		-				
	,					
					OK Close	
				Locate	OK Cancel	Beret
NewDelete				Locate	UK Landel	rieset

3.2.1 Deleting Devices

You can select the device on Connected Devices group and click "Delete" button. The device will be deleted. You may click "Search" button and find the device again.



EDG-4508(R)+/4516(R)+ User Manual 26

3.2.2 Connected Devices Group Functions

While you move the device(s) to Connected Devices group, you can use these functions

- Lock device
- Grouping Allocate
- Download firmware
- EDG II configuration utility check the device(s) automatically. Connected online, Disconnected offline
- The utility will record these devices on Connected Devices group and will connect and check these devices again while the utility will be relaunched.

3.3 Locking & Unlocking Devices

The EDG II configuration utility provides Lock and Grouping Lock function to secure the device(s). You can modify the password one by one on the "Security Configuration" tab. There is only one password in the EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+. You can use Configuration utility, Web Configuration, and Console to modify this password and disable the security control.

System Port	Monitor	
System Configurat	tion	Security Configuration
Device Name	Firmware Version	Modify Password
1	1.19	Newpreseword
Device Descriptio	n	
	<u>_</u>	Confirm password
		Allow any IP to access
	v	C Specified IP which can access
Network Configura	ation	Add Delete
Ethernet	Ethernet1	
MAC Address	00 01 02 03 04 36	
IP Address	172 18 3 154	
II Address	172.10.3.134	
Subnet Mask	255.255.0.0	
Default Gateway		
		1
		Unerrete Dut Lanate La Anala La Carta L
		Upgrade FW Locate Apply Cancel

Note	Don't input any character on the password field and
	save. The security control is disabled.

You also use the "Grouping Lock" button to modify the password while the devices are on "Connected Devices group".

				Select All Cle	ar All
No.	Model	Device Name	IP Address	MAC Address	
1	EDG 4516R+	EDG-000102030436	172.18.3.236	00:01:02:03:04:36	
					_
					-
					_
					-

While you click "OK" button, the password will be updated to device. You should click "Reset" button, the module will move this data to Flash memory and restart.

Note: You might finish all setting and click "Apply" to enable the modification in the moment; otherwise the setting will disappear while the device restarts.

You can click the "Un-lock" button and select the devices you want to unlock.

Unlock Devices								
					,			
				Select All	Clear All			
No.	Model	Device Name	IP Address	MAC Address				
D								
r assw	olu . J	Unio	CK LIOSE					

You also select the device and right click "Mouse button". Input the password and unlock the device.



😢 EDG Configuration Utility								
Exit Eunction Help								
🗳 🙆 🗸								
Ethernet Data Gateway	System Port Monitor							
[E Search	- System Configuration							
Available Devices :	Device Name Firmware Version							
⊡-EDG 4508(R)+	1.19 Modify Password							
EDG -0001FF030408	New password							
	Device Description							
	Ressible IP							
	Enter password Allow any IP to access							
	Specified IP which can access							
1 11	Network Lontiguration Add Delete							
Connected Devices :	Ethernet Et Cancel							
EDG 4508(R)+	NAC 444							
EDG -00D0C9F0F0F8	MAC Address 00 01 02 03 04 36							
EVG 4516(R)+	IP Address 172.18.3.156							
200 000102000430	Subnet Mask 255 255 0							
	Default Gateway 172.18.3.255							
New Delete	Locate Apply Cancel							
3.4 Locating the Module

The configuration utility provides a "Locate" function to assist you in finding a specific device. You can select the EDG Series as a group or just select one specific module, e.g. EDG-4508+ or EDG-4516+.

There are two different options for the Locate function

3.4.1 Locate a specific device for you

1. Click "Search" button and find all devices on the IP domain.

😵 EDG II Configuration Utility		×
Exit Eunction Help		
🗳 🗳		
Ethernet Data Gateway System Pool Available Devices : EDG 4506(R)+ Connected Devices : EDG 4516(R)+ EDG 4516(R)+ EDG 4516(R)+ Connected Devices : EDG 4516(R)+ MAC Addres Subnet Mas Default Gate	t Monitor figuration re Firmware Version 1.18 ription Firmware Version 1.18 Firmware Version 1.18 Firmware Version 1.18 V V 1.18 V V V V V V V V V V V V V	Security Configuration Modify Password New password Confirm password Accessible IP C Allow any IP to access Securited IP which can access Add Delete
New Delete		Locate Apply Cancel

- 2. Select the device on the "Available Devices" Tab and click "Locate" button.
- 3. The device buzzer sound.
- 4. Click "Stop" to stop.

EDC 0001000001	
EDG -000102030A	AA
EDG -000102030A	AA
[Stop

3.4.2 Grouping Locate specific devices for you

1. Click the "Locate" button

				Select All Clear All
No.	Model	Device Name	IP Address	MAC Address
1	EDG 4516R+	EDG-000102030436	172.18.3.236	00:01:02:03:04:36

- 2. Select the devices which you want to locate.
- 3. Click the "Stop"

3.5 Device System Configuration

The EDG II configuration utility only searches for EDG-4508(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ on the local network, and cannot search beyond a router or gateway. Make sure that the EDG-4508(R)+ or EDG-4516(R)+ you want to monitor resides in the same local network segment as the host PC. You might use "New" function to add the device by yourself.

System Port	Monitor	
System Configurat	ion	Security Configuration
Device Name	Firmware Version	Modify Password
	1.19	
Device Descriptio	n	New password
		Confirm password
		Accessible IP
		Allow any IP to access
	y	Specified IP which can access
Network Configura	ation	Add Delete
Ethernet	Ethernet1	
NAC 4 11		
MAC Address	00 01 02 03 04 36	
IP Address	172.18.3.154	
Subpet Mask	255 255 0 0	
Cabilot Masic		
Default Gateway		
		Unaverte Dut Langete Gauget
		Upgrade FW Locate Apply Lancel

Device Name

The configuration utility provides a default name for device to distinguish a specific EDG Series from other EDG Series. You can update the default device name based on your application. Names longer than 32 characters cannot be used. It is best to choose a name you can remember.

Device Description

This field is to record the function, application and other information for each EDG Series device in more detail for easy management and maintenance. You are allowed to describe in your own words. Names longer than 127 characters cannot be used.

System Configuration Device Name	Firmware Version
	1.18
Device Description	
	<u>~</u>
	•

Firmware Version

In this field, the configuration utility represents the firmware version of the EDG Series. You might need to refer to the firmware version to determine functions available on the EDG Series device. In case of problems that might concern the firmware version, please provide the firmware version number to our Customer Service.

Network Configuration Ethernet

Select the Ethernet that you want to configure.

MAC Address

The MAC address is for the local system to identify and locate each EDG series. This MAC address is already set before delivery from factory, hence no need for further configuration.

IP address, Subnet Mask, Default Gateway

The IP address identifies your EDG device on the global network. Each EDG device has the same default IP address 10.0.0.1. Obtain a specific IP address from your network administrator and then configure each EDG device with an individual IP address, related Subnet Mask and Gateway Setting.

Network Configuration		
Ethernet	Ethernet1	
MAC Address	00 01 02 03 04 36	
IP Address	172.18.3.236	
Subnet Mask	255.255.255.0	
Default Gateway	172.18.3.254	

Note	EDG devices do not support auto IP address con-
	figured by DHCP server.

3.5.1 Security Configuration -Password Modify

Security Configuration
Modify Password
New password
Confirm password

In default setting, each EDG device don't has password. You can change the password to protect all configuration settings of your EDG device. If you want to cancel the password, you can blank the New password and Confirm password.

There is only one password on the device for Console mode, Web configuration, and Utility configuration.

While you modify and save password, the password on the device memory will be changed immediately whether you use Console, Web configuration, or Utility configuration.

Allow any IP to access

If this option is enabled, all PC can access data from this EDG.

The specified IP which can access

Enabled this option, you might limit at most 32 PCs to access data from this EDG.



3.6 Port Configuration

There are three operation modes for EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+, Virtual COM mode, Data mode, and Control mode. You can configure mode for individual ports.

Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1 💌	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
Description	Virtual COM Mode	
	Control Mode	
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None	None 💌
Baud Rate 9600	Data Bits 8	Stop Bits 1

Selected Port

To specify which port on the EDG Series is to be connected to the serial device.

Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
PORT 1		
PORT 4 PORT 5 PORT 6	Parity None	Flow Control
PORT 7 PORT 8	Data Bits 8	Stop Bits 1

Description

User can give more detailed description of the function of the port for easy management and maintenance. Descriptions longer than 128 characters cannot be used.

Туре

EDG Series offers three kinds of serial interfaces, RS-232, RS-485 and RS-422. User can use any of the three serial interfaces according to user's requirements.

Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
Description		
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌
RS232 RS422	Data Bits	Stop Bits
RS485	8	1

Parity

The EDG Series provides five options: None, Odd, Even, Space, Mark.

Port Configuration		
Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1 💌	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
Description		
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌
Baud Rate	None	Stop Bits
9600 💌	Even	1
Virtual COM Mode	Mark	
Host Idle Timeout(s)		
0		
-		

Flow Control

The EDG Series provides four options: None, Xon/Xoff, RTS/CTS, DTR/DSR.

Selected Port	Operating Mode	
Description		
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌
Baud Rate	Data Bits	None
9600 🔽	8	Xon/Xott RTS/CTS

Baud Rate

The EDG Series supports baud rates from 50 to 230,400bps.

Deat Cauffer weifere		, I
Port Configuration		
Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1 💌	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
Description		
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌
Baud Rate	Data Bits	Stop Bits
9600 💌	8	1
7200		
9600		
19200		
38400		
57600		
115200		
230400		

Data Bits

The EDG Series provides four options: 5, 6, 7 or 8.

Port Configuration		
Selected Port	Operating Mode	
Description		
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌
Baud Rate	Data Bits	Stop Bits
9600 💌	8	1
Virtual COM Mode	5	
Host Idle Timeout(s)	7	
0	8	

Stop Bits

The EDG Series provides three options: 1, 1.5 or 2.

Port Configuration		
Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
Description		
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 🔽	None 💌	None 💌
Baud Rate	Data Bits	Stop Bits
9600 💌	8	1
-Virtual COM Mode		15
Host Idle Timeout(s)		2
0		

3.6.1 Virtual COM mode

The EDG device is advanced Ethernet data gateway units. It extends traditional COM ports of a PC to Ethernet access. Through Ethernet networking, users can control and monitor remote serial devices and equipment over LAN or WAN. EDG series come with a Virtual COM driver that transmits all serial signals intact. This means that your existing COM-based software can be preserved, without modifying to fulfil the needs. The Virtual COM mode allows user to continue using RS-232/422/ 485 serial communications software that was written for pure serial communication applications.

EDG series comes equipped with COM driver that work with Window NT/2000/XP systems. The driver establishes a transparent connection between host and serial device by mapping the IP of EDG serial port to a local COM port on the host computer.

System Port Monitor Port Configuration				
Selected Port PDRT 1 Description	Operating Mode			
Type RS232 Baud Rate 9600	Parity None Data Bits 8	Flow Control None Stop Bits 1	- -	
∼Virtual COM Mode Host Idle Timeout(s) 0				
		Upgrade FW Lo	Docate Apply	Cancel

Host Idle Timeout

The utility allows the user to set the host idle timeout value. When the idle happens and continues more than the set value, the utility will cut off the connection between EDG-4508/16 and the host automatically. User must re-connect to recover the communication. You might input value 0 to disable the Host Idle timeout option.

Virtual COM Mode		
Host Idle Timeout(s) 0		

Note	While you disable the Host Idle option, the EDG will not cut off the connection. If Host loses the connec-
	tion with EDG and the Host Idle option is disabled, Host will not connect to EDG again.

3.6.2 Data Mode

EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R) can be Data server or Data client either. Both operations support TCP and UDP protocol. The EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R) makes your serial devices behave just like networking devices. You can issue commands or transmit data from serial devices, which connected to EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R), to any devices that are connected to the Internet.

EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+ allows most 4 host PC accessing data simultaneously via polling networking architecture. You can use it according to your application. If you want to access the EDG-4516(R)+and EDG-4508(R), you must ascertain your application software supports standard networking application programming interface (API) such as: WinSock Socket.

You might select Data mode and setup port attributes

Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
Description	Virtual COM Mode Data Mode Control Mode	
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌
Baud Rate 9600	Data Bits	Stop Bits

Protocol

EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+ provides TCP/IP and UDP two protocols. In settings, you can choose either TCP mode or UDP mode according to your application.

Data Mode Protocol
TCP
TCP UDP
Command Listen Port 5400
Data Idle Timeout(s)
60

Data Listen Port

The TCP(UDP) port number represents the source port number , and the number is used to identify the channel for remote initiating connections. Range: 1024-65533. If an unknown caller wants to connect to the system and asks for some services, they need to define the TCP(UDP) port to carry a long-term conversation.

Each node on a TCP/IP network has an IP address, and each IP address can allow connections on one or more TCP port. The well known TCP port are those that have been defined; for example, port 23 is used for Telnet connections. There are also custom sockets that users and developers define for their specific needs. The default TCP (UDP) port of EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+ is 5200. The example initial 5200 is System Port, and 5201 is Data Port. But users can adjust them by one's preference or application.

Each port has its own data listen port to accept connected request of other network device. So, the data listen port can't be set the same value. You can transmit/receive data to/from device via the data listen port.

Command Listen Port

Each port has its own command listen port to accept connected request of other network device. So, the command listen port can't be set the same value. You can use 'AT command' to change the port setting via the command listen port. The Command Listen Port must be different from the Data Listen port.

Data Idle Timeout

The default is 60 seconds. If you want to keep connection continually, you can key-in "0". Data idle Time is the time period in which the device waits for data. If the EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+ does not receive data over an established idle time, the EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+ will disconnect temporarily. When the data comes to the EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+, it will reconnect automatically. Users do not need to reconnect.

Peer Number

Set the number of network device which you want to connect.

Peer for Receiving Data		
Peer Number	1 💌	
IP Address	ort	
	3	
	4	

Peer for Receiving Data		
Peer Number 4	<u>·</u>	
IP Address	Port	

IP Address

IP address of network devices which you want to connect.

Port

Another TCP port of network devices which you want to connect.

3.6.3 Control Mode

In controlling mode, the EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+ present a modem interface to the attached serial device: it accepts AT-style modem commands to connect / disconnect to other networking device. If you want serial device running application program to connect/disconnect to different devices dynamically, you can use controlling mode.

The controlling mode provides three modem AT-style commands. The serial devices can use these commands to control EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+ to connect/disconnect to remote networking device.

Thus, intelligent serial devices such as stand-alone PLC will send /receive data to/from devices one by one via Ethernet.

Selected Port	Operating Mode	
PORT 1 💌	Virtual COM Mode 💌	
Description	Virtual COM Mode	
	Control Mode	
Туре	Parity	Flow Control
RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌
Baud Rate 9600	Data Bits 8	Stop Bits 1

You might select Data mode and setup port attributes

Protocol

EDG-4508/16 provides TCP/IP and UDP two protocols. In settings, you can choose either TCP mode or UDP mode according to your application.

Control Mode Protocol
TCP 🔹
TCP
Command Listen Port
5400
Data Idle Timeout(s)
60

Data Listen Port

Each port has its own data listen port to accept connected request of other network device. So, the data listen port can't be set the same value. You can transmit/receive data to/from device via the data listen port.

Command Listen Port

Each port has its own command listen port to accept connected request of other network device. So, the command listen port can't be set the same value. You can use 'AT command' to change the port setting via the command listen port.

Data Idle Timeout

The default is 60 seconds. If you want to keep connection continually, you can key-in "0".

The following commands are available for EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+.

Command	Function
ATDT <ip address> <tcp port=""> <cr></cr></tcp></ip 	"Forms a TCP connection to the specified host. Ex: ATDT 192.0.55.22:5201 In above example, the EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG- 4508(R)+ forms a raw TCP connection to the net- working device (192.0.55.22). The TCP port is 5201."
ATA <cr></cr>	Answering an incoming call
+++ <cr></cr>	Returns the user to the command prompt when entered from the serial port during a remote host connection.

The following table illustrates the response.

Command	Function
<lf><cr> OK <lf><cr></cr></lf></cr></lf>	Commands are executed correctly
<lf><cr> CON- NECT <lf><cr></cr></lf></cr></lf>	Connect to other device
<lf><cr> RING ddd.ddd.ddd<lf>< CR></lf></cr></lf>	Detect the connection requesdt from other device, which IP address is ddd.ddd.ddd.ddd.
<lf><cr> DIS- CONNECT <lf><cr></cr></lf></cr></lf>	Disconnect from other device
<lf><cr> ERROR <lf><cr></cr></lf></cr></lf>	Incorrect commands
<lf><cr> FAIL <lf><cr></cr></lf></cr></lf>	If you issu an ATDT command and can not connect to the device, it will response "FAIL".

3.7 Monitor and Event Configuration

3.7.1 Device Status

EDG Configuration utility II provide an excellent function to monitor the virtual serial port status. User can check the serial port health.

System	Port	Monito	·					
Device	e Statu	s						
	🖲 Re	efresh C	Continue			Start	Stop	
	No.	Port	Mode	Status	Host IP			
	1	Port 1	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
	2	Port 2	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
	3	Port 3	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
	4	Port 4	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
	5	Port 5	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
	6	Port 6	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
	7	Port 7	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
	8	Port 8	Virtual COM Mode	Idle	None			
Event	Config	uration						
Event	Setting	1.	Action :					
Litone	o o can ig	, .						
EVEN	11 1	•	L->H	_				
Trigger	r:							
DI	0	🗖 DI 1	🗖 DI 2 🗖 DI	3				
Server	IP Ad	dress :	TCP Port :					

Refresh

Update port status manually when you click 'Start' button.

Continue

Update port status automatically every 10 seconds unless you click 'Stop' button.

3.7.2 Event setting

EDG-4508(R)+/EDG-4516(R)+ provide 4 events with comparison and different server IP and Port. The event will be activated when any one of DI signals that you specified meets the 'Action' option. The event will be monitored on the Host and port of your assignment.

Event Configuration	Action :
EVENT 1	L->H
Trigger : DIO DI1	🗖 DI 2 🔲 DI 3
Server IP Address :	TCP Port :

Event Setting

Specify which event of the device is to be set.

Action

There are three options: L->H, H->L or Change.

L->H: Low to High

H->L: High to Low

Change: status change

Trigger

Specify which DI you want to monitor.

Server IP Address

IP address of network device which you want to connect.

TCP Port

TCP port of network device which you want to connect.

3.8 UDP Testing Utility

The utility is for testing the status of ADAM-4577 UDP mode. It is also suitable for testing the UDP Data mode of EDG-4516(R)+ and EDG-4508(R)+. By the utility, you can set Command Timeout to test the status of UDP network architecture.

😹 UDP Testing Utilit	ty for ADAM4577	_ 🗆 ×
<u>E</u> xit <u>H</u> elp		
Target Device		
 Command Format ASCII 	Command Mode Command Timeout Single	
C HEX	C Repeat	
	Exit Stop Start	
Command	N	
	k + None 🔽	
Response		
Elapsed Time : 0		
		۵.
		~

In this section, we will describe the function by item in the UDP Testing Utility.

Target Device & UDP Port

🕺 EDG Configuration Utility			
Exit Function Help	3	💑 UDP Testing Utility for ADAM4577	
Exit Eunction Help Ethermet Data Gateway Ethermet Data Gateway Search Available Devices: EDG 4508(R)* EDG 45	System Port Monit Port Configuration Selected Port PORT 1 Description Type [R5232 Baud Rate 9600 Data Mode Protocol UDP Data Listen Port [5300 Command Listen Port [5400 Data Idle Timeout(s)	Source Tesching Ording for ADAMASSY Source Tesching Ording for ADAMASSY Target Device	
New Delete	60	Locate Apply C	ancel

You can set Target Device IP Address according to Network IP Address in Configuration Utility. And UDP Port is depended on Setting Listen on UDP Port in Configuration Utility. "UDP Port" value is equal to "Listen on UDP Port" value plus one. For Example: If your Listen on UDP Port is setting 5300, UDP Port in UDP Testing Utility must set 5300.

Command Format

This option have two choices, one is ASCII and another is HEX. This will decide Command blank what to display.

-Command Format-	
ASCII	
○ HEX	

You can choose None, CR, LF, CR+LF to test.

Command				
12345677		+	None 💌	
Response			None	
Rx Count : 169	Timeout Count : 0	Max. Rsp	LF	
Elapsed Time : 0.030			CR + LF	

The command edit control can be inputted in ASCII code ast choose ASCII Command Forma, and the command edit control can be inputted in HEX format as choose HEX Coomand.

Command Mode



Single Mode means command is running only one time to test UDP Mode. Command is running repeatedly to test UDP Mode as you choose Repeat Mode.

Command Timeout



The "Timeout" is the Host PC waiting time from

EDG-4508(R)+/EDG-4516(R)+, in this period Host PC doesn't receive any response from EDG-4508(R)+/EDG-4516(R)+, it will display "Timeout" as setting time is over.

For Example, if setting Command Timeout is 12 sec., Host PC will wait EDG-4508(R)+/EDG-4516(R)+ response until 12 sec. is over. As 12 sec. is over, Host PC did not receive any response from EDG-4508(R)+/EDG-4516(R)+, it will appear the following frame :

Send Command to the [IP Address : UDP Port] Timeout

nesponse			
Rx Count : 169	Timeout Count : 0	Max. Rsp Time :	0.040
Elapsed Time : 0.030			
Receive Respons	e from the [172.18	3.3.155:5300] Len	gth[8] 🗾
12345677			
Receive Respons	e from the [172.18	3.3.155:5300] Len	gth[8]
12345677		-	
Receive Respons	e from the [172.18	3.3.155:53001 Len	ath[8]
12345677	[·····]-···	9[-]
Receive Respons	e from the [172.18	3.3.155:5300] Len	gth[8]
12345677	-	-	
Receive Respons	e from the [172.18	3.3.155:5300] Len	gth[8]
12345677	•	-	• • •
			•

Following Frame is UDP Testing Utility is running test as UDP responses well.

🐻 UDP Testing Utility for ADAM4577	
Exit Help	
Target Device	
IP Address : 172.18.3.155 💌 UDP Port : 5300 💌	
Command Format Command Mode Command Timeout	
C ASCII C Single 9	
Exit Stop Start	
Command	
12345677 + None	
Response	
Rx Count : 169 Timeout Count : 0 Max. Rsp Time : 0.040	
Elapsed Time : 0.030	
Receive Response from the [172.18.3.155:5300] Length[8]	_
12345677	
Receive Response from the [172.18.3.155:5300] Length[8]	
12345677	
Receive Response from the [1/2.18.3.155:5300] Length[8]	
Beceive Response from the [172 18 3 155:5300] Length[8]	
12345677	
Receive Response from the [172.18.3.155:5300] Length[8]	
12345677	

3.9 Updating EDG Firmware

Advantech continually upgrades its firmware. You can use the download function located on the COM Port Configuration utility to carry out the upgrade procedure. Please access www.advantech.com to download the required file and then follow these instructions.

You have to move the device to Connected Device group, and then you can use download firmware function

🛃 EDG II Configuration Utility		- 🗆 🗵
Exit Eunction Help		
🗳 🔷 🗸		
Ethernet Data Gateway	System Port Monitor	
[E Search	System Configuration	
Available Devices :	Device Name Firmware Version Modifu Procurated	
	1.17	
	Device Description	-
	Confirm password	-
	Accessible IP	
	 Allow any in to access 	
	Specified IP which can access	
44	Network Configuration Add Delete	
Connected Devices :	Ethemet Ethemet1	
EDG 4516(R)+	MAC 4 14	
EDG -00D0C9A6C09C	MAC Address 00 D0 C3 A6 C0 3C	
	IP Address 172.18.3.150	
	Subnet Mask 255.255.255.0	
	Default Gateway 172.18.3.54	
- I		
	Unweite Dirf. Lawren L. Ander L. Com	
New Delete	Upgrade FW Locate Apply Land	281
Upgrade firmware success		

1. Click on the Upgrade FW button

2. Locate and select the firmware that you want to download.

🛃 EDG II Configuration Utili	Ly _ 🗌 🗶
Exit Eunction Help	
-Ethernet Data Gateway- 正王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王王	搜尋位置①: filmware
alut	檔案各稱(1): edg4516v119d1 開營(2) % 檔案類型(1):取消
Connected Devices: □ EDG 4516(R)+ □ CDG -00D0C3A6C05	Ethernet Ethernet1 gc MAC Address 00 D0 C9 A6 C0 9C IP Address 172 18 3 150 Subnet Mask 255 255 255 255 0 Default Gateway 172 18 3 54
New Delete	Upgrade FW Locate Apply Cancel

🔁 EDG II Configuration Utility	×
Exit Eunction Help	
🗳 🔷 🗸	
Ethemet Data Gateway FE FE Search Available Devices :	System Port Monitor System Configuration Device Name Firmware Version I.17 Device Description Confirm password Confirm passwo
	Ethernet Ethernet1 Image: Control of the control of th
New Delete	L Upgrade FW Locate Apply Cancel

3. After the firmware have been downloaded into the EDG device, this device will reboot and enable the new firmware.

🐮 EDG II Configuration Utility	
Exit Eurotion Help	
Ethernet Data Gateway System Port Monitor TE Search System Configuration Security Configuration Available Devices : Device Name Firmware Version Modify Password Device Description Confirm password Confirm password Accessible IP Accessible IP Accessible IP Allow any IP to access Specified IP which can access	
Image: Connected Devices : Ethernet Add Image: Connected Devices : Image: EDG 4516/R)* Ethernet Image: Connected Devices : Add Image: Connected Devices : Image: EDG 4516/R)* Image: Connected Devices : Image: Connected Devices : Image: Connected Devices : Add Image: Connected Devices : Image: EDG 4516/R)* Image: Connected Devices : Image: Connected Devices : Image: Connected Devices : Add Image: Connected Devices : Image: EDG 0000 C9A6C09C Image: Connected Devices : Image: Connected Deviced Devices : Image: Connected Devices :)elete
New Delete Upgrade FW Locate Apply	Cancel



Port Mapping Utility

Chapter 4 Port Mapping Utility

4.1 Overview

The purpose of the port mapping utility is to help you manage all ports on one Windows NT/2000/ME/XP platform. The utility displays three types of ports: used ports, unused ports and EDG ports. Please follow the Virtual COM port setting steps.

4.2 Virtual COM Port Settings

1. Click "+" at "Unused Ports" to expand the unused port lists, and select the port that you want to configure.



EDG-4508(R)+/4516(R)+ User Manual 58

2. Click the 'Add' button to assign a COM port to an EDG device. You might click 'Add All' button to assign the COM ports the EDG device. The COM ports number depends on the model of installed device that you selects.

🛃 EDG COMPort Mapping Utility		_ 🗆 🗡
<u>File H</u> elp		
Ports on My Computer	Model of Installed Device	
COM8	EDG4516(R)+	Add All
🖻 Unused Ports 📃	IP Address of Installed Device	ų
— СОМ2 📃	172.18.3.155 🔹	
COM4	Port of Installed Device	
— СОМ5	Port 1	
COM6	Properties	
COM7	Auto Reconnect	
COMB	Memo	
COM10		
COM12		
COM13		
- COM14		
СОМ15		Add
СОМ16		
— СОМ17 🚽		<u>E</u> xit
	<u> </u>	

Module of Installed Device

You can choose between all connected EDG devices. In this example, EDG-4516(R)+ was chosen.

IP Address of Installed Device

Enter the IP address you assigned prior.

Port of Installed Device

Choose the port where you want to setup: 8 ports for EDG-4508(R)+ and 16 ports for EDG-4516(R)+.

Properties (Auto Reconnect Function)

Sometimes, the connection between EDG device and HOST is interrupted by network traffic or powered-off by accident. In such a situation, the host have to reconnect to EDG device.

The function "Auto-reconnect" is for this purpose, If the EDG device loses the connection to its host, the VCOM driver will try to re-establish the connection while the HOST AP access the VCOM port. The driver DO NOT re-establish the connection automatically. When the connection is working again, the host's commands will be automatically received by the EDG Series again. Reconfiguration is not necessary, so this function enhances the reliability of the system.

if the function is disabled, the connection can not be re-established again unless the VCOM driver or HOST is restarted.

Memo

You can add a description to the port setting if necessary.

Add

Click here to add a single port setting to your specification.

Add All

You can assign all ports to follow current settings by clicking the "Add All" button. This is more convenient than adding ports individually. For this example, we have selected COM21 and made all necessary settings for Port 1 of EDG-4516+. After clicking on the "Add All" button, the COM Port Mapping Utility will assign the COM21 ~ COM36 mapping to Port 1 ~ Port 16.

Ports on My Computer	Model of Installed Device	
COM21	EDG4516+	
CUM21 COM252 COM253 COM253 COM254 COM255 ADAM4570 Ports DAM4571 Ports ED64504 Ports COM10 COM11 COM11 COM12 COM13 ED64508+ Ports ED64516+ Ports EO64516+ Ports COM22 COM23	IP Address of installed Device IP2.18.3.226 ♥ Pot of Installed Device Pot of Installed Device Pot 1 ♥ Properties ♥ Auto Reconnect Memo	Delete Apply Exit

(COM21 is mapping to Port 1 of EDG-4516+)



(COM22 is mapping to Port 2 of EDG-4516+)

Note

If you assigned a different COM port to the same EDG series module port, the following dialog box will remind you.



4.3 Inquiring Virtual COM Port Setting

You can check the virtual COM port setting by clicking on the EDG device's ports. In this case, COM11 is assigned to Port 1 of EDG-4516+.

Elle Help Ports on My Computer Model of Installed Device CDM11 EDG4516+ E Used Ports IP Address of Installed Device I Unused Ports IP2.18.3.226 ADAM4570 Ports Port of Installed Device EDG4504 Ports Port of Installed Device EDG4508+ Ports Port of Installed Device EDG4516+ Ports Vauto Reconnect EDG4516+ Ports Memo ADAM4570L Ports AbaM4570L Ports ADAM4571E Ports Iest ADAM4571S Ports Iest ADAM4571S Ports Iest ADAM4571S Ports Iest	💹 EDG COMPort Mapping Util	ity	
	Eile Help Ports on My Computer COM11 • Used Ports - ADAM4570 Ports • ADAM4570 Ports - EDG4504 Ports • EDG4506+ Ports - EDG4516+ Ports • COM11 - ADAM4570 Ports • EDG4516+ Ports - EDG4516+ Ports • ADAM4570 Ports - ADAM4570 Ports • ADAM4570+ Ports - ADAM4570+ Ports • ADAM4570+ Ports - ADAM4571+ Ports	Model of Installed Device EDG4516+ IP Address of Installed Device 172.18.3.226 Port of Installed Device Port 1 Properties ✓ Auto Reconnect Memo	Update FW Iest Delete Apply Exit

4.3.1 Self Test Function

Test

The purpose of this test is to confirm that the communication from the host PC to the EDG device is OK. When the test is selected, an external test will be performed to check that the connection signal between each port is working properly. For this test, you will need to connect each port to a Loopback tester. Refer to the following chart for specifications of this Loopback tester. The Loopback test only applies to RS-232 mode. It is divided in two parts: Signal test and Communication Parameters test.

1. Click on the Test button in the Port Mapping utility. A message will confirm that the loopback connector have already been connected with the EDG COM port. If ready, click the Start button to start the test.

File Help			Result Message
Patts on Ny Computer COM21 ®: Uneed Ports >> Unued Ports >> Unued Ports >> ADM4971 Ports >> ADM4971 Ports >> COM9 >> COM0 >> COM2 >> COM2 >> COM2	Model de Instaled Derice COGISTIA PARASers of Instaled Derice (Post 1 Post 1 Para Recorrect Meno	Lisdae PW Lest Ng Quinte Acch	Peace main such that the type of energy poor is 19:22 and the the traphase connector has already twee connector with the EDO COMPAR. Then club the Bart batter is toot.
- COM27	~	Exit	Prot 1 Store 1 Store

Result Message		
COMIT Start feating TEST RI Signal ON F /F TEST OTNICEMENTS. TEST David Rate. 90 TEST Baud Rate. 90 TEST Baud Rate. 100 TEST Baud Rate. 110 TEST Baud Rate. 100 TEST Baud Rate. 100 TEST Baud Rate. 100 TEST Baud Rate. 100 TEST Baud Rate. 100	L. Description Date Stars 1 FAL Party Nove Date Strep 1 FAL	
		Stop Goss

Test Fail (Without Loopback Connector)

Result Message				
COM9 Start testin	19			~
TEST DTR/DSR/F	TS/CTS/DCD/RI Signal OK			
TEST Baud Rate:	50 Parity None Data 5 Stop 1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	75 Parity:None Data:5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	110 Parity None Data:5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	150 Parity:None Data:5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	300 Parity None Data 5 Stop 1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	600 Parity None Data:5 Stop 1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	1200 Parity:None Data 5 Stop 1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	1800 Parity:None Data 5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	2400 Parity:None Data:5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	4800 Parity:None Data 5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	7200 Parity:None Data:5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	9600 Parity:None Data 5 Stop:1	OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	14400 Parity None Date 5 Stop	1 OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	19200 Parity:None Data:5 Stop:	1 OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	38400 Parity None Date 5 Stop	1 OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	57600 Parity:None Data:5 Stop:	1 OK		
TEST Baud Rate:	115200 Parity None Data 5 Stop:	1 OK		
		Start	Stop	Close

Test ok

Signal Test

- RTS->CTS: Checks the RTS and CTS signals between two ports.
- DTR->RI: Checks the DTR and RI signals between two ports.
- DTR->DSR: Checks the DTR and DSR signals between two ports.
- DTR->DCD: Checks the DTR and DCD signals between two ports.

Communication Parameters Test

- Baud rate: From 50 bps to 230 kbps
- Data bits: 5, 6, 7, 8
- Stop bits: 1, 1.5, 2
- Parity: odd, even, none, space, mark

2. Click the OK button to return to the port mapping window. All the ports in the EDG Series are tested ok.

Delete

You can delete Port Mapping Setting by clicking the button.



Apply

If any changes are made, please press the button to confirm your modifications.

Exit

If you want to quit the utility, you might click < Exit > button or <X> on the right top of this window. A new enhancement is implemented from version 1.40 Build137. If any changes are made in the COM Port Mapping setting, your changes will work while you exit COM Port Mapping. Sometime, the system reboot requirement might show up.

Note	If you change the COM port setting and the COM is used by AP, the COM Port Mapping utility will crash and you might get the 'Blue Screen'. This is because the COM resource is occupied by OS system, COM port Mapping utility try to remove it and unauthorized accessing occur.

4.3.2 Save the Configuration

If you want to save or recover the configuration, you can select the "Import/Export" items.

- 1. a. Select "File"
 - b. Select "Import" or "Export".



2. Save or open the configurations

Open				?	×
Look jn:	🔤 EDG COMPort	-	<u></u>	* 🔳	
factory.cp	m				1
File name:	factory.cpm			Open	1
Files of type:	COMPort mapping file (*.com)		Ŧ	Cancel	1
	1		_		1

EDG-4508(*R*)+/4516(*R*)+ User Manual 66


Web-Based Configuration

Chapter 5 Web-Based Configuration

5.1 Overview

EDG devices can be configured through a web interface. By using a standard web browser, the same procedure as with the Windows configuration utility can be used. In the browser's address field, enter the IP Address of your EDG device. The default IP setting is 10.0.0.1, but you should use the IP which you have previously assigned for this device. Once the IP is entered, you will be presented with the following windows.

5.2 Access Web Page

Step 1. Enter ID and Password

The default ID and password is root, key this into both fields..

Enter Netv	vork Passwor	d	? ×				
? >	Please type yo	ur user name and password.					
2	Site:	172.18.6.117					
	Realm EDG-4516R+ Web Server						
	<u>U</u> ser Name	I					
	<u>P</u> assword						
	\Box Save this p	assword in your password list					
		OK Can	cel				

Step 2. Web Based Configuration Welcome

After authorization, the first page will be displayed.

AD\ANTECH		
ADVANTECH	Welcome to EDG-4516R+ Web Configuration Server We provide following function to configure EDG-4516R+ System - device name, device description, firmware message Port Configuration - UART Configuration : - Mode Configuration : - IP address, netmask, default gateway and MAC address Event Configuration - digital input trigger, digital input action, server IP address, server port Change Password - change the login password	
	Reboot — after configuring, you must restart the device and the setting will take affect	

You can change the Device Name and Device Description on this page. Press 'Save' to store the settings.

AD\ANTECH	
🔁 Home	System Information
System	Firmware version: 1.18
 Port Configuration Network Configuration 	Device Name
Event Configuration Change Password Reboot	Device Description
	Save

5.3 Network Configuration

Click network configuration, there are: MAC address, IP Address, Subnet Mask and Default Gateway. Enter the corresponding values for your network environment.

Step 1. Enter IP Address, Subnet Mask and Default Gateway

AD\ANTECH							
Home System Port Configuration	Network Configuration Ethernet1						
Port's Mode Network Configuration	MAC Address	00-01-02-03-04-36					
Event Configuration Change Password Reboot	IP Address	[172.18.3.236					
	Subnet Mask	255 255 255 0					
	Default Gateway	172.18.3.254					
	Save						

Step 2. Press 'Save' to store the settings.

Note: All new configurations will take effect after reset. The reset function is located on the main menu of the Web Configuration.

5.4 Port Configuration

Under port configuration – Port's Mode, you can setup the mode for individual ports. There are three modes Virtual COM mode, Data mode, and Control mode. While you select VCOM mode, you also setup HOST Idle option here.

AD\ANTECH		
Mome System	Port's Mode Configuration	Port 1
Port Configuration Port's UART Port's Mode	Mode Host Idle Timeout(s)	Virtual COM Mode
Network Configuration Event Configuration Change Password Reboot	Apply above setting to all ports	

5.4.1 Data Mode

You might refer to chapter 3.6.2 to clarify the setting.

AD \ANTECH										
Home System Port Configuration Rotts UART	Port's Mode Configuration									
	Port ID	Port 1 💌								
	Mode	Data Mode								
Port's Mode	Protocol	TCP -								
<u>Network Configuration</u>	Data Idle Timeout(s)	60								
Change Password	Data Listen Port	6300								
Reboot	Command Listen Port	5400								
	Peer for Receiving Data									
	Peer Number	1 🗸								
	Peer IP address 1	Port 1								
	Peer IP address 2	Port 2								
	Peer IP address 3	Port 3								
	Peer IP address 4	Port 4								
	Apply above setting to all ports (Listen On TCP Port and AT Command Port will be enumerated automatically)									
	Save									

5.4.2 Control Mode

You might refer to chapter 3.6.3 to clarify the setting.

AD\ANTECH		
Home System Port Configuration Ports UART Ports Mode Network Configuration Event Configuration Change Password Reboot	Port's Mode Configuration Port ID Mode	Port 1 💌
	Protocol Data Idle Timeout(s)	TCP -
	Data Listen Port Command Listen Port	5300
	Apply above setting to all ports	
	Save	

5.4.3 Port UART setting

You can as sign the Type, Parity, Flow Control, Baud Rate, Data Bits, and Stop Bits.

You might enable the 'Set all ports parameter like Port 1' and others setting will set as same as Port 1.

AD\ANTECH							
A Home	Port's L	IART Confi	guration				
System	Set all po	rts parameter li	ike Port 1	C Yes ☉ No			
🖻 🔄 Port Configuration		Туре	Parity	Flow Control	Baud Rate	Data Bits	Stop Bits
Port's UART	Port 1	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
 Port's Mode Network Configuration 	Port 2	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
Event Configuration	Port 3	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 🕶	1 💌
Change Password	Port 4	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
🗐 <u>Reboot</u>	Port 5	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 🕶	1 💌
	Port 6	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 7	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 8	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 9	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 10	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 11	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 12	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 13	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 14	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 15	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Port 16	RS232 💌	None 💌	None 💌	9600 💌	8 💌	1 💌
	Save						

5.5 DI/O Event Configuration

In event configuration, you can assign a DI event by enabling the check box and choosing the optimized action mode, Server IP and TCP Port for the active event. You can setup 4 events with comparison and different IP and Port. The event will be activated when any one of DI signals that you specified meets the 'Action' option. The event will be monitored on the Host and port of your assignment.

Action option:

L->H: Low to High

H->L: High to Low

Change: status change

AD\ANTECH							
🔄 Home	Event	Config	uration				
System		DI 0	DI 1	DI 2	DI 3	Action	Server
🖲 🧰 Port Configuration	Event 1					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
Network Configuration Fvent Configuration	Event 2					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
<u>Change Password</u>	Event 3					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
Reboot	Event 4					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
	Save						

5.6 Change Password

You can modify the password.



5.7 Reset Configuration

The configuration will take effect after clicking < Save> button. But all configurations will save to flash memory after this reset step. Press the reset button and the system will give a reset response. It will take a few seconds to reconnect with the new values.

AD\ANTECH	
 Home System Port Configuration Port's UART Port's Mode Network Configuration Event Configuration Change Password Reboot 	Reset!? Warning!! Reset will disconnect both ethernet and serial connection. Do you want reset now? Yes



Console Configuration

Chapter 6 Console Configuration

6.1 Overview

The purpose of the Console Configuration is to help you manage your device in console mode. One of the main functions of the console mode is to change the web configuration login password. You can use terminal software like Hyper Terminal, Telix and other related terminal software.

6.2 Hyper Terminal Connection

Step 1. Connecting the cable

You can connect to the EDG device's console port with a RS-232 DB9 M-type communication cable, with the other end connecting to the host's serial port. Make sure the connection is OK and then run the Hyper Terminal Program on your host.

Step 2. Creating a new connection

You can create a new connection and assign a connection name for the console configuration.

Connection Description	? ×
New Connection	
Enter a name and choose an icon for the connection:	
Name:	
EDG-4516+	
<u>I</u> con:	
	2
OK Ca	ncel

Step 3. Selecting a COM Port

Confirm that the console configuration works ok.

Connect To		? ×
8 EDG-45	16+	
Enter details for	the phone number that you want	to dial:
Country/region:	United States of America (1)	*
Ar <u>e</u> a code:	22	
Phone number:	[(*
Connect using:	COM1	F
	OK Can	cel

Step 4. COM Port Setting

To connect the EDG series for console configuration, the port setting should match the EDG series' default setting.

<u>B</u> its per second:	57600	-
<u>D</u> ata bits	8	•
<u>P</u> arity.	None	•
<u>S</u> lop bits	1	•
Elow control:	Hardware	-

Console Configuration Default Setting

Baud Rate: 57600 Data Bits: 8 Parity: None Stop Bits: 1 Flow Control: None

Step 5. Connecting Successfully

After connecting the device in console mode, you can simply type the password to entry the consol configuration.



6.3 Command List

Command	Function
system	Show or configure device name and information
port	Show or configure ports information
mvcom	Show or configure all port mode and mode informa- tion
mctrl	Show or configure port mode and mode information
mdata	Show or configure port mode and mode information
pmode	Show port mode
event	Show or configure the event status and information
net	Displays or configure the net configuration
password	Set password
reboot	Write settings to flash memory and reboot the system immediately
save	Save the settings right now.
exit	Terminate shell session
help	Display help information of command list
<tab><tab ></tab </tab>	Display help information of command list

Help

You might type "help" command or press <Tab> twice to show the Supported Command Lists.

[Usage] Help

[Function] Display help information of command lit

```
Password incorrect!
Please type password:****
Welcome to configuration console...
Press 'TAB' twice or use 'help' command to get command list.
Use 'help command' to get commands description.
$help
Supported commands:
system
                                port
                                                                                                mctrl
                                                               MVCOM
mdata
                                pmode
                                                                event
                                                                                                net
password
help
                                                                                                exit
                                reset
                                                                save
$
```

You might use "help" command to show the usage of command.

[Usage] help command

[Function] Show the usage of command.

```
$help port
Usage: port [nn|all]
Show port status and informations.
Usage: port [nn] desc [Maximum length 127 bytes]
Set serial port description.
Usage: port [nn|all] type [232]422]485] flow []
flow 0:None.
flow 1:X0n/X0ff.
flow 3:DTR/DSR.
Set serial port type and flow control.
Usage: port [nn|all] baud [50-230400] parity [] data [5-8] stop [1]1.5]2]
acceptable baud: 50 75 110 150 300 600 1200 1800 2400 4800 7200 9600
14400 19200 37600 115200 230400
parity n: None Parity.
parity e: Even Parity.
parity o: Odd Parity.
parity m: Mark Parity.
set serial baud rate, parity and numbers of data bits, numbers of stop bits.
Usage: port [nn|all] mode [vcom[ctr]]data]
Set serial part as virtual COM mode or control mode or data mode.
Press any key for continue...
```

System

[Usage] system

[Function] Show firmware version, device name and description

```
٠
Welcome to configuration console...
Press 'TAB' twice or use 'help' command to get command list.
Use 'help command' to get commands description.
$help
Supported commands:
system
                           port
                                                      mvcom
                                                                                 mctrl
mdata
                           pmode
                                                     event
                                                                                 net
password
                           reset
                                                     save
                                                                                 exit
help
$system
Firmware Version
                           :1.15
Device Name
Device Description :''
$_
```

[Usage] system name xxxx

[Function] configure the device name [xxxx: maximum length 31 bytes]

[Usage] system desc xxxx

[Function] setup the device description [xxxx: maximum length 127 bytes]

Port

'Port' is a complex command to show port information and configure port setting.

\$help port Usage: port [nn|all] Show port status and informations. Usage: port [nn] desc [Maximum length 127 bytes] Set serial port description. Usage: port [nn|all] type [232|422|485] flow [] flow 0:None. flow 1:XOn/XOff. flow 2:RTS/CTS. Set serial port type and flow control. Usage: port [nn|all] baud [50-230400] parity [] data [5-8] stop [1|1.5|2] acceptable baud: 50 75 110 150 300 600 1200 1800 2400 4800 7200 9600 14400 19200 38400 57600 115200 230400 parity n: None Parity. parity 0: Odd Parity. parity is Space Parity. parity is Space Parity. Set serial baud rate, parity and numbers of data bits, numbers of stop bits. Usage: port [nn|all] mode [vcom|ctr||data] Set serial port as virtual COM mode or control mode or data mode. Press any key for continue...

[Usage] port nn

[Function] Show "nn"nd port or all ports information

0 🗃 💿 💈 🚥 🗃 🖻 00 00 00 00 00 00 \$ \$ \$port Serial Port 1 Information Description : Baudrate Type : RS-232 Flow Control None : 115200 Data Bits : 8 Stop Bits : 1 Mode : Data Mode : None Parity Data Idle TimeOut(s) : 60 Data Listen Port : 5300 Command Listen Port : 5400 Peer for Receive Data Peer Number : 1 Press any key to continue...

[Usage] port nn desc xxxx

[Function] configure "nn"nd port description, [xxxx: maximum length 127 bytes]

[Usage] port nn type 232|422|485 flow 0|1|2|3 [Function] setup serial type and flow control Flow 0. None Flow 1: XOn/Xoff Flow 2. RTS/CTS Flow 3: DTR/DSR

[Usage] port nn baud xx parity n|e|o|m|s data 5|6|7|8 stop 1|1.5|2 [Function] setup serial baud rate, parity check, data bit, and stop bit. Acceptable baud rate setting: Parity n: None parity Parity e: Even parity Parity o: Odd parity Parity m: Mark parity Parity s: Space parity

[Usage] port nn mode vcom|ctrl|data

[Function] configure serial port as virtual COM mode, Control mode, and Data mode

mycom

Show and setup COM ports mode

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 \$

 <t

[Usage] mvcom

[Function] show all ports

□☞ ◎ 🎖 ▫ 🖻

```
$mvcom
*****
                   ****
Port2
           : Virtual COM Mode
Host Idle TimeOut(s) : 0
Port4
           : Virtual COM Mode
Host Idle TimeOut(s) : 0
******
           : Virtual COM Mode
Port6
Host Idle TimeOut(s) : 0
*********
Port8
           : Virtual COM Mode
Host Idle TimeOut(s) : 0
    Port10
           : Virtual COM Mode
Host Idle TimeOut(s) : 0
Port12
           : Virtual COM Mode
Port14 : Virtual COM Mode
Host Idle TimeOut(s) : 0
Press and her fills
Press any key for continue...
```

[Usage] mvcom nn|all

[Function] setup "nn"nd port or all ports as Virtual COM mode.

[Usage] mvcom nn|all idleto xx

[Function] configure host idle time.

mctrl

Show and setup Control mode

[Usage] mctrl [Function] show port mode

[Usage] mctrl nn|all [Function] setup "nn"nd port or all ports as Control mode.

[Usage] mctrl nn|all protocol TCP|UDP [Function] setups transmit protocol as TCP or UDP.

[Usage] mctrl nn|all idleto x data port xxxx cmdport xxxx

[Function] setup data idle timeout, data listen port and command listen port.

Mdata

Show and setup Data mode

[Usage] mdata [Function] show port mode

```
0 📽 💿 🐉 🗈 🦢 😭
 00 00 00 00
 ŝ
 $mdata
                                                   *****
               *****
   ****
                                 : Data Mode
  Port1
  Protocol
 Data Idle TimeOut(s) : 60
Data Listen Port : 53
 Data Listen Port : 5300
Command Listen Port : 5400
Peer for Receive Data
Pers any key to continue...
                                     5300
                                                   *****
  Port5
                                  : Data Mode
  Protocol
                                    UDP
  Data Idle TimeOut(s) : 60
Data Listen Port : 534
 Command Listen Port
Command Listen Port
Peer for Receive Data
Peer Number : 1
Press are :
                                  : 5304
                                  : 5404
 Press any key to continue...
```

[Usage] mdata nn|all

[Function] setup "nn"nd port or all ports as Data mode.

[Usage] mdata nn|all protocol TCP|UDP [Function] setups transmit protocol as TCP or UDP.

[Usage] mdata nn|all idleto x data port xxxx cmdport xxxx [Function] setup data idle timeout, data listen port and command listen port.

[Usage] mdata nn|all peernum 1|2|3|4 peer xxx.xxx.xxx.xxx:ppp [Function] setup peer IP address and port for receive data.

pmode

[Usage] pmode [Function] show port's mode.

Event

[Usage] event

[Function] show the event's status and configuration

[Usage] event nn|all trigger no|0&1&2&3 action L2H|H2L|CHG [Function] setup the event(s)

[Usage] event nn|all server xxx.xxx.xxx.xxx:ppp [Function] setup server IP address and TCP port.

```
06 🚳 🖏 📾 🗃
```

```
00 00 00 00
$
Šhelp event
Usage: event [nn|all]
 Show the event status and information
Usage: event [nn|all] trigger [no|(0&1&2&3)] action [L2H|H2L|CHG]
  Set the configuration of event(s).
Usage: event [nn|all] server [d.d.d.d:d]
Set server IP address:TCP port when event is triggered.
$
$event
Event 1 is disable
*****
Event 2 is disable
*****
Event 3 is disable
******
Event 4 is disable
$
$
```

net

[Usage] net

[Function] show the MAC address, IP address, Subnet Mask, and default gateway.

[Usage] net ip xxx.xxx.xxx netmask xxx,xxx,xxx,xxx gw xxx,xxx,xxx

[Function] setup IP address and subnet mask and default gateway.

password

provide p

If the password is empty, you might input the new password.

[Usage] password new [1~31 characters]

[Function] setup new password.

If the password is existed, you have to input the existed password and new password.

[Usage] password old [existed password] new [1~31 characters] [Function] replace the existed password with new one.

EDG-4508(*R*)+/4516(*R*)+ User Manual 90



Event and DI/O Monitoring

Chapter 7 Event and DI/O Monitoring

7.1 Overview

The purpose of Event and DIO Test is to help you monitor your EDG-4508(R)+/4516(R)+DI/DO event(s). Follow these steps to test the DI/DO event(s).

7.2 Event and DI/O Monitoring

7.2.1 Polling Monitoring

The following screen will appear once the EVENT Tester Program is executed. To start monitoring the Polling, enter the IP Address and press start. The Status will change to Monitoring if you enter the correct IP of your device.



EDG-4508(R)+/4516(R)+ User Manual 92

7.2.2 Event Monitoring

Once you have executed the steps in previous chapters you can use the tester to monitor the event status with the port and IP you have assigned before. Please follow these steps:

Step 1. Assign IP and TCP Port for mon	iitoring
--	----------

AD\ANTECH							
😋 Home	Event (Config	uration				
System		DI 0	DI 1	DI 2	DI 3	Action	Server
🖻 🔄 Port Configuration	Event 1					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
Port's UART Port's Mode	Event 2					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
Network Configuration	Event 3					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
Event Configuration	Event 4					L->H 💌	IP: Port:
Change Password							
eboot	Save						

(Setting Event monitoring from Web Event Configuration)

Step 2. Assign TCP Port of Event Server and click on "Start". Event and DIO tester will change to Monitoring Mode. Red indicator in normal mode means Inactive and Green indicator means Active.

🗑 Even	it and D	IO teste	r		
E <u>x</u> it <u>A</u> l	out	-1	1 sta	l Maxima Lag	
Polling	Event 1 ort of Eve	∬ Event 3 nt Server	2	[18:47:29] Event 1 listen on TCP port 9999	
9999					
Input S	tatus				
DIO	DI1	DI2	DI3		
Output	Status	1			
 Status	D01 Lis	(_002 ten	<u>D03</u>		
Sta	rt 🚺	St	op	8	2

(Event Monitoring and no Event Active)

Step 3. We can activate the DI0 event; tester will show the green indicator. Message Log will show event log with timer and event description.



(DI0 Active and Event Monitor Shows Green)

7.3 Programming I/O

According the feature list, it mentioned EDG-4508+/4516+ provide the D/I AND D/O handling function. In order to help customer to create the I/O event handling environment. We provide a programmable I/O sample program for customer use. After installing the EDG COM Port Utility, the sample programs will be on the location as follow:

C:\Program Files\Advantech\EDG COMPort Utility\samples\vc\ edgevtio.

How to use the sample files?

(1) The sample programs include following file and the develop environment is based on Microsoft Visual C++.

edgevtio.cpp edgevtio.dsp edgevtio.dsw edgevtio.ncb edgevtio.opt edgevtio.plg mbtcp.h

- (2) Compiler the sample program
- (3) Run the sample program After compiler the program and run the program, the system will change to Server mode to trigger any D/I event and sent back to system to active the D/O event.
- (4) You can modify the program and create your own event handling process.
- (5) Sample files list and description as follow: edgevtio.cpp : Defines the entry point for the console application.edgevtio.dsp edgevtio.dsp : Microsoft Developer Studio Project File edgevtio.dsw : Microsoft Developer Studio Workspace File edgevtio.ncb : Microsoft C/C++ program database edgevtio.opt edgevtio.plg mbtcp.h

In this sample files, we provide the note for the parameter for programmer use.

For example:

In edgevtio.cpp file content, line 32 to line 41

memset(&HostAddr, 0, sizeof(SOCKADDR_IN)); HostAddr.sin_family = AF_INET; HostAddr.sin_addr.s_addr = INADDR_ANY; HostAddr.sin_port = htons(5000); // | // +-->The TCP Port in the server application

It remarks the function of htons(n), the parameter n means the TCP Port in server application and It helps the programmer to make his own program easier by referencing the note we provided.

```
HostSock = socket(AF_INET, SOCK_STREAM, 0);
// |
// +-->Create the socket of TCP on the Host
```

It remarks the function of socket(AF_INET, SOCK_STREAM, 0), the function of socket(var1,var2,n) means to create the socket of TCP on Host. Programmer can also create the socket of TCP on the Host by himself.

edgevtio.dsp

Programmers can choose the develop tools for themselves. For example, in edgevtio.dsp file, the extension file name .dsp means Microsoft Developer Studio Project File. Programmer can open the file as a template to create their own programs.

edgevtio.dsw

File name of edgevtio means EDG Event I/O, extension name of dsw means it is a Microsoft Developer Studio Workspace file. This file is necessary when you open a Developer Studio Project and we make a warning note in file to reminder you not to modify or delete this related workspace file.

mbtcp.h

File name of mbtcp means Modbus TCP; we provide the easier definition of necessary parameter. For example,

#define MODBUSTCPMAXMSGLENGTH 288
#define MODBUSTCPMSGHDRLENGTH 6

typedef struct __MODBUSTCPMSG {
 unsigned short wTransactionId;
 unsigned short wProtocolld;
 unsigned char byteMsgLenHigh;
 unsigned char byteMsgLenLow;
 unsigned char Data[2];
 TMODBUSTCPMSG;

MODBUSTCPMAXMSGLENGTH

MODBUS TCP Max Message Length

MODBUSTCPMSGHDRLENGTH

MODBUS TCP Message Header Length

* The programming I/O sample programs are for programmer's reference to make the event I/O program for their own environment. Programmers can open the file as a template file to make a new project of event.

EDG-4508(*R*)+/4516(*R*)+ User Manual 98



Pin Assignments

Appendix A Pin Assignments

A.1 RS-232 Pin Assignments

Pin No.	Description
Pin 1	DCD
Pin 2	Rx
Pin 3	Tx
Pin 4	DTR
Pin 5	GND
Pin 6	DSR
Pin 7	RTS
Pin 8	CTS
Pin 9	RI



A.2 RJ-48 Cable PIN Assignments



A.2.1 1. RS-422

Pin No.	Description
1	Tx-
4	Tx+
5	GND
7	Rx+
9	Rx-

A.2.2 2. RS-485

Pin No.	Description
1	Data-
4	Data+
5	GND

EDG-4508(R)+/4516(R)+ User Manual 102